

3rd April 2023

Dear Councillor.

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 47 of the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021, you are hereby summoned to attend the Council Finance meeting which will be held on a hybrid basis in the Council Chamber at 101, High Street, Blaenavon and remotely on Wednesday the 12th of April 2023 commencing at 6:30pm for the purpose of transacting the business shown in the agenda set below.

Should you wish to attend the meeting remotely, you should contact the Chief Officer to the Council to request a remote invitation.

Members of the public have the right to ask questions at Council meetings and to speak in Welsh or English, provided that at least three working days' notice in writing of the question has been provided to the Clerk.

Agenda

- 1. To receive any questions from the public.
- 2. To receive and accept apologies.
- 3. Declarations of Interest: Members are invited to declare any interests they may have in any items on the agenda.
- 4. To receive a presentation and update from TCBC Public Services Support Unit regarding the launch of the Waste and Recycling Consultation Programme.
- 5. To receive a presentation and update from Caroline Genever Jones TCBC Elections and Business Manager regarding a Community Review relating to ward boundaries.
- **6.** To receive an overview and update from Mr Walter Waygood regarding his forthcoming photography exhibition in Blaenavon.
- 7. Council Meetings: To confirm the minutes of the Council Finance meeting held on the 8th of March 2023.

- **8.** To discuss and make a final determination regarding Blaenavon Town Council's position relating to assumed ownership and responsibility for the Ken Jones statue.
- 9. To receive, discuss and make any relevant determinations regarding an update from the Task and Finish Working Group relating to the King's Coronation Event May 2023. (Cllr Matthews)
- **10.** To receive, discuss and note the submission for Blaenavon Town Council's 2023 enrolment and re-declaration duties in compliance with The Pensions Regulator under the Pensions Act 2008.
- 11. To discuss and make a determination regarding litter picking signage in partnership with Blaenavon Heritage School, following on from a previous decision made in 2019.
- **12.** To discuss and make a determination regarding potential Town Council projects for allocation into the Project Action Plan 2023/24. Relevant updates or new projects as notified.
 - Sophie Johnson (CWDO) Tidy Butt Project.
 - Sophie Johnson (CWDO) Skateboard Project.
 - Sophie Johnson (CWDO Animals Interactive Well-Being Project.
- 13. Responsible Finance Officer's Update: To receive and consider the March 2023 financial update and note the forthcoming internal audit dates covering the financial period 2022/23.

Yours Sincerely

Kevin Warren, MInstLM, FCMI.

Chief Officer.

Blaenavon Town Council.



Summary (Notes) of the Finance Meeting of Blaenavon Town Council held on Wednesday the 12th of April 2023 at 6:30 pm on a hybrid basis in the Council Chamber at 101, High Street, Blaenavon and remotely in accordance with the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021

The full minutes of the meeting are subject to confirmation at the Council Finance Meeting to be held on Wednesday the 10th of May 2023.

In attendance:

Councillors in attendance: A. Jones (In the Chair)

L. Cowles, A. Beavan, N. Matthews, J. Hunt, L. Evans, S. Keen, M. Wheeler, I. Parfitt.

Officers: Kevin Warren (Chief Officer), Sophie Johnson (Community Wellbeing Development Officer), Kerry Jones (Assistant Chief Officer).

Visitors: Caroline Genever-Jones, TCBC Elections Manager, Theresa Pearce & Kate Jenkins, TCBC Public Services. Mr Walter Waygood.

Member of public: None present.

The finance meeting was opened at 6:30pm by the Mayor Councillor Alan Jones who welcomed everyone and expressed thanks for attendance.

1. To receive any questions from the public.

None.

2. To receive and accept apologies.

- Cllr James Maternity leave
- Cllr Harris Work commitment

It was proposed by Cllr Cowles and seconded by Cllr Evans that the apologies be accepted.

All members in agreement.

Resolved: Apologies accepted.

3. <u>Declarations of Interest.</u>

Cllr Cowles – Personal interest – Item 9

7. <u>Council Meetings: To confirm the minutes of the Council Finance Meeting held on the 8th of March 2023.</u>

Minutes were read for accuracy with no amendments.

It was proposed by Cllr Cowles and seconded by Cllr Evans that the minutes be accepted.

All members in agreement.

Resolved: Minutes approved as a true and accurate record.

8. To discuss and make a final determination regarding Blaenavon Town Council's position relating to assumed ownership and responsibility for the Ken Jones statue.

Cllr Jones provided members with an overview of matters relating to the statue ownership and explained he had been involved from the start and understood that TCBC took responsibility of the statue when the Ken Jones Group was disestablished.

The statue was handed over to TCBC representatives. The statue has been damaged several times in the past and TCBC have repaired the statue.

Members raised several questions:

• Had there been any material changes since the last update from Dave Leech or Joanne Gauden?

Cllr Jones confirmed there had not.

• Will Blaenavon Town Council's insurance take over the insurance?

Cllr Jones confirmed the Town Council do not own the statue.

• What are the cost implications to Blaenavon Town Council if ownership is taken on?

The Chief Officer explained that costs for insurance cannot be assessed until the statue is in ownership.

The Chief Officer also explained that members have received updates from TCBC's communities' officer and cabinet member.

The email from the cabinet member at TCBC invites the Town Council to formalise the intent of the Ken Jones group to assume ownership. TCBC have absolved themselves of all responsibility.

No decision has ever been made by the Town Council to take ownership of the Ken Jones statue.

The Ken Jones group is disestablished, therefore, who will ownership be taken from? You cannot assume ownership from a group that does not exist.

The statue is currently damaged and undergoing repair by TCBC. There is no current valuation of the statue. If it is returned to Ivor Gardens, it is likely to be damaged again.

The Chief Officer further explained that there is no obligation for the Town Council to assume ownership of the statue. Correspondence to consider ownership by the Town Council was received in October 2014 and the Council failed to make a determination relating to ownership.

The Chief Officer explained that based on all the information currently known and available, it was advised not to assume ownership. Cllr Jones supported the Chief Officer on the advice.

Further questions and points were raised by members.

• If TCBC insured the statue, then they must own the statue?

The Chief Officer confirmed that on joining the Town Council he was informed by Kate Fitzgerald TCBC, to arrange annual inspections of the statue and to forward the report to TCBC, which formed part of the TCBC insurance. This has been completed since 2018.

The Chief Officer clarified that when the statue was damaged again in 2021, he contacted Sam Anstee at TCBC and was informed that TCBC do not own nor insure the statue.

• When the executive member attended the Town Council meeting, it was explained that she would get a legal statement from TCBC. Has that statement been forthcoming?

Cllr Jones confirmed that there had not been a legal statement from TCBC only a basic response.

The Chief Officer added that members had been provided with updates from Dave Leech and Cllr Gauden the Executive member at TCBC and that we are no further forward. Blaenavon Town Council need to make a decision regarding ownership. Advice remains unchanged, not to take ownership for the reasons outlined.

Cllr Evans proposed that with the current information and discussion that have been held that the Town Council do not take ownership of the Ken Jones statue.

This was seconded by Cllr Cowles who added that the Chief Officer write to TCBC explaining the decision with the points discussed, and the rationale why the Town Council have come to this decision, sending a copy to Dave Leech, Joanne Gauden and Steven Vickers.

All members in agreement.

Resolved: Determination made not to assume ownership of the Ken Jones Statue. Chief Officer to inform TCBC.

9. To receive, discuss and make any relevant determinations regarding an update from the Task and Finish Working Group relating to the King's Coronation Event - May 2023.

Cllr Matthews updated members.

The Workmen's Hall will not facilitate a coronation event. Therefore, the Town Council will work in partnership with Forgeside Rugby Club Community Garden and the World Heritage Centre to deliver two community events.

The coronation event working group have held two meetings on the 29th March and 6th April 2023 where it was suggested that the Town Council support the two below events in addition to the previously agreed competitions.

- Sunday the 7th of May 2023 Big lunch and first year anniversary of Forgeside Community Garden.
- Monday the 8th of May 2023 Coronation fare with GW Crafters at The World Heritage Centre.

Posters will be shared on social media as well as distribution around the town. There will be bunting erected in Broad Street which will remain in place throughout the summer months.

The event on the 7th of May at Forgeside Rugby ground will include a craft market, street food stalls, disco, live local bands and bar along with first aid cover from St John Ambulance Service and extra portable toilet facilities.

The event on the 8th of May at the Heritage Centre will include a craft fair, balloon artist, face painter, children's craft sessions and music by Blaenavon Male Voice Choir.

Members were strongly encouraged to take part at both events including setting up on Saturday the 6th of May at Forgeside and helping with clearing up following the events.

Previously members approved a budget of £4k. The working group recommend an increase by £1k as a contingency plan for any additional costs.

It was agreed to set a contingency fund of £1k. This was proposed by Cllr Matthews and seconded by Cllr Wheeler.

All members in agreement.

Resolved: King's Coronation Event contingency budget of £1k authorised.

12. To discuss and make a determination regarding potential Town Council projects for allocation into the Project Action Plan 2023/24. Relevant updates or new projects as notified.

A series of proposed projects were submitted to members by Sophie Johnson for their perusal prior to the meeting.

Sophie presented the following projects to members for discussion and subsequent determinations.

- Sophie Johnson (CWDO) Tidy Butt Project
- Sophie Johnson (CWDO) Skateboard Project
- Sophie Johnson (CWDO) Animals Interactive Wellbeing Project

Tidy Butt Project.

To work in partnership with Pontypool Community Council and Tidy Butt, a registered mental health charity, to deliver a full day well-being event for all year 10 pupils aged 14-15 years in St Albans and Abersychan High Schools during July 2023.

Over the two schools this event would reach around 700 young people.

Tidy Butt deliver wellbeing talks throughout South Wales to schools, businesses, and sports teams. During these thought-provoking presentations, they discuss mental health and wellbeing by covering key elements that mental health is built around.

They also look at the connection between mental and physical health, the things that could impact mental health both negatively and positively and the things people can control to positively impact their own mental health and mood.

The Wellbeing Day consists of five sessions / workshops, pupils will rotate around all five.

This will be delivered in each school, during the school day, each session is approximately forty-five to sixty minutes and run by a Tidy Butt facilitator.

A full day workshop costs £2000 per school x 2 schools = £4000. If 50% is funded in partnership with Pontypool Community Council, the total cost will be £2000.

Pontypool Community Councillors have expressed a keen interest in joint funding the project, this will be discussed and ratified at their Full Council meeting on the 26th of April 2023.

A brief discussion took place amongst members.

It was proposed by Cllr Cowles and seconded by Cllr Hunt to support the project.

All members in agreement.

Resolved: Project authorised.

Skateboard Project.

To work in partnership with Torfaen Sports Development and Skateboard Academy UK to provide a total of five, two-hour skateboarding sessions for 11–16-year-olds during the school holidays.

Skateboard Academy UK are an accredited organisation who provide professional, high quality skateboard coaching and support to all ages throughout South Wales. They work with schools, Councils, sports organisations etc.

All equipment will be provided namely boards, helmets, ramps etc, meaning any young person interested in attending can do so.

Feedback from the community has highlighted a lack of activities for this age group during school holidays in the town, resulting in large groups of young people gathering in and around the town.

There will be one session during May / June half term and four (one a week) throughout August 2023. The cost of the project is £540 + VAT

A brief discussion took place amongst members.

It was proposed by Cllr Hunt and seconded by Cllr Keen to support the project.

All members in agreement.

Resolved: Project authorised.

Animals Interactive Wellbeing Project.

To deliver an animal well-being session to residents with Animals Interactive- trained practitioners in animal intervention therapies.

The project consists of one hour twenty-minute well-being sessions involving participants learning about, holding, and feeding a variety of different animals, including snakes, lizards, rabbit, guinea pigs, mice, meerkats, skunks, tarantula, fox, and therapy dog.

To be held in a venue in Blaenavon (TBC) for thirty participants.

Animals Interactive are a well-established, experienced organisation who deliver numerous animal well-being, therapy and care sessions in schools, residential homes, children's home, charities and communities throughout South Wales

The cost per session would be £129 plus room hire of approximately £50. Total cost of project: £179

A brief discussion took place amongst members.

It was proposed by Cllr Parfitt and seconded by Cllr Keen to support the project.

All members in agreement.

Resolved: Project authorised.

13. <u>Responsible Finance Officer's Update: To receive and consider the March 2023 financial update and note the forthcoming internal audit dates covering the financial period 2022/23.</u>

Mr Warren updated members that all four Community Brew grants have been transacted to the successful local groups, totalling £20k. The remaining balance is £206.00.

Members were informed of the upcoming internal audit dates, which are Thursday 13th and Friday 14th April 2023. Mr Smith, the Town Council's appointed internal auditor will carry out a full audit for the period 2022/23.

The audit report will be presented by Mr Warren at the Full Council meeting on the 26th of April 2023

Mr Warren (RFO) forwarded to members the March 2023 financial reports electronically in advance of the meeting which detailed the following areas:

- Income and Expenditure
- Credit Card Payments
- Cheque Payments
- Bacs Payments
- Cash Book Transactions
- Bank Reconciliation
- Project Expenditure
- Budget
- VAT
- Bank Statements

Mr Warren presented to members each of the above areas of finance for March 2023 and highlighted any relevant information.

Members were invited to ask any questions in relation to the information presented. There were none.

Members were happy with the presentation.

Resolved: Financial update for March 2023 accepted by members.

Meeting ended at 20.02 hrs.



BLAENAVON TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL FINANCE MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY 12th of April 2023.

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 47 of the Local Government and Elections
Wales) Act 2021, the meeting was held on a hybrid basis in the Council Chamber at 101,
High Street Blaenavon and remotely.

In attendance:

Councillors in attendance: A. Jones (In the Chair)

L. Cowles, A. Beavan, N. Matthews, J. Hunt, L. Evans, S. Keen, M. Wheeler, I. Parfitt.

Officers: Kevin Warren (Chief Officer), Sophie Johnson (Community Wellbeing Development Officer), Kerry Jones (Assistant Chief Officer).

Visitors: Caroline Genever-Jones, TCBC Elections Manager, Theresa Pearce & Kate Jenkins, TCBC Public Services. Mr Walter Waygood.

Member of public: None present.

The finance meeting was opened at 6:30pm by the Mayor Councillor Alan Jones who welcomed everyone and expressed thanks for attendance.

1. To receive any questions from the public.

None.

2. To receive and accept apologies.

Cllr James – Maternity leave Cllr Harris – Work commitment

It was proposed by Cllr Cowles and seconded by Cllr Evans that the apologies be accepted.

All members in agreement.

Resolved: Apologies accepted.

3. Declarations of Interest.

Cllr Cowles – Personal interest – Item 9.

4. To receive a presentation and update from Caroline Genever Jones TCBC Elections and Business Manager regarding a Community Review relating to ward boundaries.

Caroline explained to members that the review would consist of two parts namely;

- Electoral Areas
- Electoral Boundaries

The last community review was conducted in 2012. A task and finish group consisting of TCBC members has been set up which would not contain Town or Community Councillors due to a conflict of interest.

The 'Terms of Reference' for the review has now been written.

Members were provided with a brief overview regarding the options that the review would consider relating to electoral areas and boundaries.

The terms of reference would be presented to TCBC Full Council on the 25th of April 2023 and if approved, this would then be disseminated to the Town Council with a four-week review period for a response to be submitted back to TCBC.

It was hoped that the review would be completed within a year. The consultation results would be made public as part of the terms of reference. When the review is finalised, it will not come into force until the next election in 2027.

Members raised a point relating to TCBC councillors being part of the review working group who have actively tried to dissolve Town and Community Councils. Are these members considered to be bias as well?

It was explained to members that volunteers were asked to put themselves forward for the review working group and there is cross party representation.

This was to make the process as fair as possible and not one individual would be making decisions. The views of the Welsh Government would also have to be taken into consideration, but the review decisions would have to be approved by TCBC Full Council.

Caroline was thanked by the Mayor for attending and updating members. Caroline then left the meeting.

Resolved: Members noted the update.

5. To receive a presentation and update from TCBC Public Services Support Unit regarding the launch of the Waste and Recycling Consultation Programme.

Members received a presentation from Theresa Pearce & Kate Jenkins, TCBC Public Services regarding the launch of the Waste and Recycling Consultation Programme.

It was explained that the reason for the changes was to achieve the Welsh Government's recycling targets of 70%. TCBC at present are only achieving 62.7% and are well short of the required target.

If the targets are not achieved, then TCBC would be fined £100k per 1% under the 70% required target.

An overview was presented via the projector screen covering a breakdown of current recycling patterns across the county borough. The proposed changes would be for either three or four weekly collections for the purple bins.

No decisions have been made at this stage and this would be completed after the consultation process. Members were informed that some Borough Councils have not consulted but just implemented the changes.

To date there has been a good response from the public. In order to attempt to reach the required targets then education would need to be implemented with enforcement as a last resort.

A series of questions were presented by members namely;

- Would TCBC be taking on extra staff to support the changes?
- Are the contents of the purple bin recycled?
- Should there only be 20% of existing refuse in the purple bins?
- What about the issues surrounding missed collections?
- Will information leaflets go out to all members?
- Would the data from the research be sent to the Town Council?
- Would there be a demographic study across the borough to identify persistent offenders?
- It would be helpful to promote disabled assist.

An explanation was provided to members and it was highlighted that there would be no extra staff employed as this would be achieved using existing staff and extra training. It was confirmed that only 20% of existing refuge should be placed in the purple bins and this is not recycled but incinerated.

In terms of missed collections, these should be reported to TCBC. Information relating to the changes would be available within the TCBC newsletter and or downloaded from the TCBC website.

Data from the research would be available on the Welsh Government's website. It would be difficult to identify persistent offenders, and this could be delivered by housing associations Theresa stated that she would take back the point raised relating to disabled assist.

Both TCBC officers were thanked by the Mayor for attending and updating members. Theresa and Kate then left the meeting.

Resolved: Members noted the update.

6. To receive an overview and update from Mr Walter Waygood regarding his forthcoming photography exhibition in Blaenavon.

Mr Walter Waygood presented to members an overview of his upcoming exhibition called the 'Family of Blaenavon' and a snapshot of his career.

The exhibition has been sponsored by Forged Solutions and it will be displayed within Blaenavon Workmen's Hall. Mr Waygood also explained that to run in tandem with the exhibition would be a book called the 'Family of Blaenavon'

The book was currently 100 pages and members were presented with images of the planned content. Mr Waygood explained that he would want the book to be 150 pages.

Members were provided with an overview of the frames and mounting boards required to deliver the exhibition and to consider a sponsorship request of £994

Mr Waygood was thanked by the Mayor for attending and updating members. Mr Waygood then left the meeting.

Resolved: Members noted the update.

7. Council Meetings: To confirm the minutes of the Council Finance Meeting held on the 8th of March 2023.

Minutes were read for accuracy with no amendments.

It was proposed by Cllr Cowles and seconded by Cllr Evans that the minutes be accepted.

All members in agreement.

Resolved: Minutes approved as a true and accurate record.

8. To discuss and make a final determination regarding Blaenavon Town Council's position relating to assumed ownership and responsibility for the Ken Jones statue.

Cllr Jones provided members with an overview of matters relating to the statue ownership and explained he had been involved from the start and understood that TCBC took responsibility of the statue when the Ken Jones Group was disestablished.

The statue was handed over to TCBC representatives. The statue has been damaged several times in the past and TCBC have repaired the statue.

Members raised several questions:

 Had there been any material changes since the last update from Dave Leech or Joanne Gauden?

Cllr Jones confirmed there had not

• Will Blaenavon Town Council's insurance take over the insurance?

Cllr Jones confirmed the Town Council do not own the statue.

What are the cost implications to Blaenavon Town Council if ownership is taken on?

The Chief Officer explained that costs for insurance cannot be assessed until the statue is in ownership.

The Chief Officer also explained that members have received updates from TCBC's communities' officer and cabinet member.

The email from the cabinet member at TCBC invites the Town Council to formalise the intent of the Ken Jones group to assume ownership. TCBC have absolved themselves of all responsibility. No decision has ever been made by the Town Council to take ownership of the Ken Jones statue.

The Ken Jones group is disestablished, therefore, who will ownership be taken from? You cannot assume ownership from a group that does not exist.

The statue is currently damaged and undergoing repair by TCBC. There is no current valuation of the statue. If it is returned to Ivor Gardens, it is likely to be damaged again.

The Chief Officer further explained that there is no obligation for the Town Council to assume ownership of the statue. Correspondence to consider ownership by the Town Council was received in October 2014 and the Council failed to make a determination relating to ownership.

The Chief Officer explained that based on all the information currently known and available, it was advised not to assume ownership. Cllr Jones supported the Chief Officer on the advice.

Further questions and points were raised by members.

If TCBC insured the statue, then they must own the statue?

The Chief Officer confirmed that on joining the Town Council he was informed by Kate Fitzgerald TCBC, to arrange annual inspections of the statue and to forward the report to TCBC, which formed part of the TCBC insurance. This has been completed since 2018.

The Chief Officer clarified that when the statue was damaged again in 2021, he contacted Sam Anstee at TCBC and was informed that TCBC do not own nor insure the statue.

• When the executive member attended the Town Council meeting, it was explained that she would get a legal statement from TCBC. Has that statement been forthcoming?

Cllr Jones confirmed that there had not been a legal statement from TCBC only a basic response.

The Chief Officer added that members had been provided with updates from Dave Leech and Cllr Gauden the Executive member at TCBC and that we are no further forward. Blaenavon Town Council need to make a decision regarding ownership. Advice remains unchanged, not to take ownership for the reasons outlined.

Cllr Evans proposed that with the current information and discussion that have been held that the Town Council do not take ownership of the Ken Jones statue.

This was seconded by Cllr Cowles who added that the Chief Officer write to TCBC explaining the decision with the points discussed and the rationale why the Town Council have come to this decision, sending a copy to Dave Leech, Joanne Gauden and Steven Vickers.

All members in agreement.

Resolved: Determination made not to assume ownership of the Ken Jones Statue. Chief Officer to inform TCBC.

9. <u>To receive, discuss and make any relevant determinations regarding an update from the Task and Finish Working Group relating to the King's Coronation Event - May 2023.</u>

Cllr Matthews updated members.

The Workmen's Hall will not facilitate a coronation event. Therefore, the Town Council will work in partnership with Forgeside Rugby Club Community Garden and the World Heritage Centre to deliver two community events.

The coronation event working group have held two meetings on the 29th March and 6th April 2023 where it was suggested that the Town Council support the two below events in addition to the previously agreed competitions.

- Sunday the 7th of May 2023 Big lunch and first year anniversary of Forgeside Community Garden.
- Monday the 8th of May 2023 Coronation fare with GW Crafters at The World Heritage Centre.

Posters will be shared on social media as well as distribution around the town. There will be bunting erected in Broad Street which will remain in place throughout the summer months.

The event on the 7th of May at Forgeside Rugby ground will include a craft market, street food stalls, disco, live local bands and bar along with first aid cover from St John Ambulance Service and extra portable toilet facilities.

The event on the 8th of May at the Heritage Centre will include a craft fair, balloon artist, face painter, children's craft sessions and music by Blaenavon Male Voice Choir.

Members were strongly encouraged to take part at both events including setting up on Saturday the 6th of May at Forgeside and helping with clearing up following the events.

Previously members approved a budget of £4k. The working group recommend an increase by £1k as a contingency plan for any additional costs.

It was agreed to set a contingency fund of £1k. This was proposed by Cllr Matthews and seconded by Cllr Wheeler.

All members in agreement.

Resolved: King's Coronation Event contingency budget of £1k authorised.

10. To receive, discuss and note the submission for Blaenavon Town Council's 2023 enrolment and re-declaration duties in compliance with The Pensions Regulator under the Pensions Act 2008.

The Chief Officer had forwarded to members the documentation relating to the Town Council's submission to the Pension Regulator relating to re - enrolment and re - declaration requirements.

The Chief officer provided members with an explanation regarding the submission and highlighted that the Town Council are now compliant until 2026.

Resolved: Members noted the update.

11. To discuss and make a determination regarding litter picking signage in partnership with Blaenavon Heritage School, following on from a previous decision made in 2019.

Sophie Johnson explained to members that she had been in contact with the Eco Council at the Heritage School, who mentioned a previous project in company with the Town Council regarding litter posters that had been designed by school children, would be made into signs and displayed throughout the Town.

It was further explained that these children had now left the school and that new posters have been designed and sent to Sophie with a view to be getting the signs made.

The Chief Officer clarified to members that this previous project dated back to 2019 for school children to design anti-litter signage for display on lamp post in the vicinity around the school.

The project would require planning permission. The process was commenced, and this was halted due to the Covid pandemic. The project needs to be regenerated with an overview regarding the location of the posters and consideration for landlord's consent and potentially consultation with TCBC Highways department.

A brief discussion took place relating to what material the signs would be made from and associated costs.

The Chief Officer stated that he would make further enquiries with TCBC for a future motion to be discussed.

Resolved: Chief Officer to make enquires with TCBC.

12. To discuss and make a determination regarding potential Town Council projects for allocation into the Project Action Plan 2023/24. Relevant updates or new projects as notified.

A series of proposed projects were submitted to members by Sophie Johnson for their perusal prior to the meeting.

Sophie presented the following projects to members for discussion and subsequent determinations.

- Sophie Johnson (CWDO) Tidy Butt Project
- Sophie Johnson (CWDO) Skateboard Project
- Sophie Johnson (CWDO) Animals Interactive Wellbeing Project

Tidy Butt Project.

To work in partnership with Pontypool Community Council and Tidy Butt, a registered mental health charity, to deliver a full day well-being event for all year 10 pupils aged 14-15 years in St Albans and Abersychan High Schools during July 2023.

Over the two schools this event would reach around 700 young people.

Tidy Butt deliver wellbeing talks throughout South Wales to schools, businesses, and sports teams. During these thought-provoking presentations, they discuss mental health and wellbeing by covering key elements that mental health is built around.

They also look at the connection between mental and physical health, the things that could impact mental health both negatively and positively and the things people can control to positively impact their own mental health and mood.

The Wellbeing Day consists of five sessions / workshops, pupils will rotate around all five.

This will be delivered in each school, during the school day, each session is approximately forty-five to sixty minutes and run by a Tidy Butt facilitator.

A full day workshop costs £2000 per school x 2 schools = £4000. If 50% is funded in partnership with Pontypool Community Council, the total cost will be £2000.

Pontypool Community Councillors have expressed a keen interest in joint funding the project, this will be discussed and ratified at their Full Council meeting on the 26th of April 2023.

A brief discussion took place amongst members.

It was proposed by Cllr Cowles and seconded by Cllr Hunt to support the project.

All members in agreement.

Resolved: Project authorised.

Skateboard Project.

To work in partnership with Torfaen Sports Development and Skateboard Academy UK to provide a total of five, two-hour skateboarding sessions for 11–16-year-olds during the school holidays.

Skateboard Academy UK are an accredited organisation who provide professional, high quality skateboard coaching and support to all ages throughout South Wales. They work with schools, Councils, sports organisations etc.

All equipment will be provided namely boards, helmets, ramps etc, meaning any young person interested in attending can do so.

Feedback from the community has highlighted a lack of activities for this age group during school holidays in the town, resulting in large groups of young people gathering in and around the town.

There will be one session during May / June half term and four (one a week) throughout August 2023. The cost of the project is £540 + VAT

A brief discussion took place amongst members.

It was proposed by Cllr Hunt and seconded by Cllr Keen to support the project.

All members in agreement.

Resolved: Project authorised.

Animals Interactive Wellbeing Project.

To deliver an animal well-being session to residents with Animals Interactive- trained practitioners in animal intervention therapies.

The project consists of one hour twenty-minute well-being sessions involving participants learning about, holding, and feeding a variety of different animals, including snakes, lizards, rabbit, guinea pigs, mice, meerkats, skunks, tarantula, fox, and therapy dog.

To be held in a venue in Blaenavon (TBC) for thirty participants.

Animals Interactive are a well-established, experienced organisation who deliver numerous animal well-being, therapy and care sessions in schools, residential homes, children's home, charities and communities throughout South Wales

The cost per session would be £129 plus room hire of approximately £50. Total cost of project: £179

A brief discussion took place amongst members.

It was proposed by Cllr Parfitt and seconded by Cllr Keen to support the project.

All members in agreement.

Resolved: Project authorised.

13. Responsible Finance Officer's Update: To receive and consider the March 2023 financial update and note the forthcoming internal audit dates covering the financial period 2022/23.

Mr Warren updated members that all four Community Brew grants have been transacted to the successful local groups, totalling £20k. The remaining balance is £206.00.

Members were informed of the upcoming internal audit dates, which are Thursday 13th and Friday 14th April 2023. Mr Smith, the Town Council's appointed internal auditor will carry out a full audit for the period 2022/23.

The audit report will be presented by Mr Warren at the Full Council meeting on the 26th of April 2023

Mr Warren (RFO) forwarded to members the March 2023 financial reports electronically in advance of the meeting which detailed the following areas:

- Income and Expenditure
- Credit Card Payments
- Cheque Payments
- Bacs Payments
- Cash Book Transactions
- Bank Reconciliation
- Project Expenditure
- Budget
- VAT
- Bank Statements

Mr Warren presented to members each of the above areas of finance for March 2023 and highlighted any relevant information.

Members were invited to ask any questions in relation to the information presented. There were none.

Date: 10/5/23.

Members were happy with the presentation.

Resolved: Financial update for March 2023 accepted by members.

Meeting ended at 20.02 hrs.

Chairman Signed:

11 | Page



BLAENAVON TOWN COUNCIL CYNGOR TREF BLAENAFON

101 High Street, Blaenavon, Torfaen. NP4 9PT

101 Stryd Fawr, Blaenafon, Torfaen. NP4 9PT

Telephone/Ffôn: 01495 790643 Facsimile/Ffacs: 01495 790643

Email/Ebost: blaenavontc@btconnect.com

www.blaenavontowncouncil.co.uk



Blaenavon Town Council Finance Update

April 2023



Bank Reconcilliation 2023 - 2024

APR

Bank Reconcilliation

Opening Balance	
Current Account	£98,973.89
Card	£264.69
Cash in Hand	£4.73
	£99,243.31
Add Receipts in Period	£61,666.66
Less Payments in Period	£18,237.71
Balance at End of Period	£142,672.26
Balances at Bank	
Current Account	£142,556.02
Card	£111.51
Cash in Hand	£4.73
	£142,672.26
	1/ /
Clerk	Sign 2/5/23
	Date 2/5/23
	Date
Chairman	Sign of Doo
	USU COLORD
	Sign <u>Abeauan</u> Date 10/5/23.

Income & Expenditure Statement 2023 - 2024



Period	APR					Os Mo
	-		ACTUAL		BUDGET	VAR
INCOME						
	BTC	£	~	£	-	£0.00
	PRECEPT	£	61,666.66	£	61,666.66	£0.00
	VAT RECEIPTS	£	~	£	-	£0.00
	REVENUE	£	-	£	-	£0.00
	НВО	£	-	£	-	£0.00
	COMMUNITY BREW INCOME	£	-	£	75 4 0	£0.00
	OTHER RECEIPTS	£	-	£	-	£0.00
		£	61,666.66	£	61,666.66	£0.00
KPENDITU	JRE	(1)				
	CALADY	•	7.050.72		7.050.70	00.00
	SALARY	£	7,850.72	£	7,850.72	£0.00
	ELECTION COSTS	£	_	£	-	£0.00
	ESTABLISHMENT COSTS	£	5,352.71	£	5,352.71	£0.00
	COUNCILLOR ALLOWANCE	£	-	£	-	£0.00
	HOSPITALITY	£	-	£	-	£0.00
	PROJECTS	£	3,011.50	£	3,011.50	£0.00
	GRANTS	£	1,744.00	£	1,744.00	£0.00
	COMMUNITYBREW	£	-	£	-	£0.00
	VAT	£	278.78	£	278.78	£0.00
		£	18,237.71	£	18,237.71	£0.00

CLERK	1/ 1	
SIGN	L. Naive	
DATE	2/5/23	

CHAIRN	//AN	
SIGN	Shoowan	_
DATE	10/05/23	_

BACS Payments 2023 - 2024

APR

MONTH

				28-Apr-2023 SALARY	27-Apr-2023 PROJECTS	27-Apr-2023 G	25-Apr-2023 ESTABLISHMENT	21-Apr-2023 G	21-Apr-2023 G	20-Apr-2023 ESTABLISHMENT	19-Apr-2023 PROJECTS	18-Apr-2023 ESTABLISHMENT	14-Apr-2023 PROJECTS	13-Apr-2023 ESTABLISHMENT	12-Apr-2023 PROJECTS	6-Apr-2023 PROJECTS	6-Apr-2023 E	4-Apr-2023 E	4-Apr-2023 PROJECTS	2-Apr-2023 E	28-Mar-2023 ESTABLISHMENT	14-Mar-2023 ESTABLISHMENT	DATE
				ALARY	ROJECTS	27-Apr-2023 GRANTS / DONATION	STABLISHMENT	21-Apr-2023 GRANTS / DONATION	21-Apr-2023 GRANTS / DONATION	STABLISHMENT	ROJECTS	STABLISHMENT	ROJECTS	STABLISHMENT	ROJECTS	ROJECTS	6-Apr-2023 ESTABLISHMENT	4-Apr-2023 ESTABLISHMENT	ROJECTS	2-Apr-2023 ESTABLISHMENT	STABLISHMENT	STABLISHMENT	CATEGORY
				PAYROLL FEES 2022-23	COFFEE & CRAFT PROJECT	WALTER WAYGOOD EXHIBITION	IT SUPPORT	MIC MORRIS TRUST	BRITISH LEGION	WEBSITE HOSTING	INFLATABLES AND RIDES	INTERNAL AUDIT 2022/23	BUS TRAVEL TO PONTYPOOL	CLLR TRAINING	PRINTED WATER BOTTLES	DIGITAL EASTER EGG TRAIL	FINANCE MONITORING SYSTEM	TRADE REFUSE CHARCH	COOKING SESSIONS	BROADBAND	COUNCIL TAX	MEMBERSHIP FEE	DESCRIPTION
				£ 155.72	£ 300.00	£ 994.00	£ 105.00	£ 500.00	£ 250.00	£ 410.00	£ 594.17	£ 500.00	£ 180.00	£ 315.00	£ 582.33	£ 800.00	£ 100.00	£ 391.56	£ 450.00	£ 38.50	£ 2,220.25	f 1,164.00	NET
				H)	£6 -	H -	£ 21.00	th -	th -	£ -	f 118.83	fi -	fi -	th -	£ 116.47	th 1	th L	th ·	th ·	£ 7.70	th -	th -	VAT
				£ 155.72	£ 300.00	£ 994.00	£ 126.00	£ 500.00	£ 250.00	£ 410.00	f 713.00	£ 500.00	f 180.00	£ 315.00	£ 698.80	£ 800.00	£ 100.00	£ 391.56	£ 450.00	£ 46.20	£ 2,220.25	f 1,164.00	TOTAL



DATE	SIGN	CLERK							
2/5/23	K. Land		v						
DATE	Sic	오							
	SIGN Spanon	CHAIRMAN							
10/05/23	Swar								
I			£ 10,314.53						

Cash card transactions 2023 - 2024

001	30	15.
	0_H	-
0-1		
(2)		

MONTH

										2	2	2			
									1-Apr-2023 ESTABLISHMENT	23-Mar-2023 ESTABLISHMENT	23-Mar-2023 PROJECTS	23-Mar-2023 PROJECTS	7-Mar-2023 ESTABLISHMENT	2-Mar-2023 ESTABLISHMENT	DATE
									ESTABLIS	ESTABLISI	PROJECTS	PROJECTS	ESTABLIS	ESTABLIS	CAT
									HMENT	HMENT			HMENT	MENT	CATEGORY
									CO-OP BANK	ROBERT	втс	втс	MICROSOFT	IONOS	
									BANK	ROBERTS FLORISTS			OFT		SUPPLIER
										S					LIER
									0	I	Е	0	0	П	
									CARD FEE	HANDTIE BOUQUET	EASTER EGGS	CONFECTIONARY	ONLINE SERVICES	IT LICENCES	
										OUQUET	SE	NARY	RVICES	0,	DESCRIPTION
															NOIT
									£	£ S	£ 9	£	Ð	£	NET
									2.00	32.50	96.00	9.00	9.40	2.00	
									FD -	£ -	H -	£ -	£ 1.88	£ 0.40	VAT
									£	ħ	£	Ħ	Ħ	₽	
									2.00	32.50	96.00	9.00	11.28	2.40	TOTAL
															STATEMENT DATE
									02-Apr	02-Apr	02-Apr	02-Apr	02-Apr	02-Apr	MENT

DATE	SIGN	CLERK					
2/5/23	>	1					
70	and						
DATE	SIGN	CHAI					
	l	CHAIRMAN					
10/05/23	Speanan						
			£ 153.18				
			.18				

Petty Cash transactions 2023 - 2024

HTNOM

APR

		1	Spoons	SIGN	and	1 - Can	SIGN
				CHAIRMAN			CLERK
	£ 4.73	Cash in Hand £	Cio.				
		nt in period	lus reimburseme	P			
	£ 4.73 £ -	ns in Period	Opening Balance £ Less transactions in Period £				
		_					
	,						
						The state of the s	
						A CONTRACTOR OF THE PERSON OF	
DATE PAID	TOTAL	VAT	NET	DESCRIPTION	SUPPLIER	CATEGORY	DATE

DATE 2/5/23

DATE

Register of cheques written 2023 - 2024

AF	
ΔPR	

MONTH



 	 	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	 		_	_	 	_	 	
																	DATE
																	CATEGORY
																	SUPPLIER
																	DESCRIPTION
																	NET
																	VAT
																	TOTAL
																	REF

CLERK SIGN 2/5/23 DATE 2/5/23 DATE 10/05/33	- (0					
CHAIRM. SIGN DATE	SIGN	CLERK				
CHAIRM. SIGN DATE	5/					
2		7				
2	1 1					
2						
06000000000000000000000000000000000000		2				
	10/05	N				
	193					
E .						

Assets Purchased 2022 - 2023

DATE	SIGN	CLERK								27-Apr-	17-Apr-	14-Apr-	14-Apr-	DATE
2 (5/23	Mare									27-Apr-2023 ORBITS IT	17-Apr-2023 AMAZON	14-Apr-2023 AMAZON	14-Apr-2023 AMAZON	SUPPLIER
										COMPUTER / MONITOR	LAMINATOR	A3 PRINTER	ROTARY TRIMMER	DESCRIPTION
DATE 10/05/23	SIGN SESSON	CHAIRMAN								CHAMBER	CHAMBER	CHAMBER	CHAMBER	LOCATION
ĮVS	3									£ 935.00	£ 33.04	£ 479.00	£ 31.77	NET
			1							£ 187.00	£ 6.61	£ 95.80	£ 6.36	VAT
			£ 1,774.58							£ 1,122.00	£ 39.65	£ 574.80	£ 38.13	TOTAL